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1. 

 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
 
 
The Board of Directors and Members 
Schools Excess Liability Fund 
Sacramento, California 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Schools Excess Liability Fund as of and for 
the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise Schools Excess Liability Fund’s financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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2. 

Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Schools Excess Liability Fund, as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in its 
financial position and its cash flows for the fiscal years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
In June 2012 the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pensions.”  Also, in November 2013 the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition for 
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date”.  As discussed in Note 1, Statements 68 
and 71 are effective for the Schools Excess Liability Fund’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  These 
Statements replace the requirements of Statement No. 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State and Local 
Governmental Employers” and Statement No. 50, “Pension Disclosures.”  Statements 68 and 71 establish 
standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources and expenses as well as identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to 
project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present value and 
attribute that present value to periods of employee service.  Note disclosures and required supplementary 
information requirements about pensions are also addressed.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to 
this matter. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 12, the Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by Type of 
Contract on pages 29 and 30, the Claims Development Information on pages 31 through 33, the 
Schedule of the JPA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability on page 34 and the Schedule of 
the JPA Contributions on page 35, be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses 
to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Schools Excess Liability Fund’s financial statements. The Combining 
Statements of Net Position, Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position, 
and Schedule of Investments are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the financial statements.  
 



 

 
 

 
3. 

The Combining Statements of Net Position, Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change 
in Net Position, and Schedule of Investments are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Combining 
Statements of Net Position, Combining Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position, 
and Schedule of Investments are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial 
statements as a whole.   
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 1, 
2015 on our consideration of Schools Excess Liability Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide 
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.   That report is an integral part of 
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Schools Excess 
Liability Fund’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.   
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe Horwath LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
October 1, 2015 
 
 



 

 
 

4. 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Schools Excess Liability Fund (SELF) was established March 1, 1986 by a Joint Powers Agreement to provide 
mutual risk pooling for public educational agencies in California.  Under such an agreement, two or more public 
agencies may jointly exercise any power common to the contracting parties.  SELF originated with 102 members in 
the Excess Liability Program in the first year, and grew to 538 members in 2014/2015.  July 1, 1989, SELF launched 
the Excess Workers’ Compensation Program, which closed after the June 30, 2010 fiscal year, and had 50 members 
during its tenure.  SELF continues to manage the runoff of workers’ compensation claims between July 1, 1989 and 
June 30, 2010.  SELF is a public agency which exists to serve our members and the students they represent.  For 
financial reporting purposes, SELF operates as a special-purpose government engaged in business type activities.   
 
SELF is governed by sixteen elected Board of Directors, alternates, and two ex-officio members representing the 
Department of Education and the Chancellor of Community Colleges Office  The Board of Directors elects a Chair, 
Vice Chair, Secretary, and Comptroller for a two-year term from the members of the Board of Directors.  SELF also 
has an Executive Committee comprised of SELF Board Officers, including the Past Chair, and the Chairs of 
dedicated committees for Finance, Member Services & Communications, Liability Claims & Coverage, and 
Workers’ Compensation Claims & Coverage.   The Board of Directors is responsible for the ongoing operations of 
SELF and is empowered to implement and enforce all provisions of the Joint Powers Agreement, the SELF Bylaws, 
and all approved policies and procedures.   
 
SELF’s Bylaws delegates the responsibility of the daily operation to the Chief Executive Officer.  SELF provides 
reports on activities to the Board of Directors and other Committees at regularly scheduled meetings throughout the 
year.  The Chief Fiscal Officer provides Treasury Reports, Financial Statements, and other financial reports regularly to 
the Finance Committee, which reviews all financial reports before submission to the Board of Directors for approval. 
 
 
Mission Statement 
SELF is a member-owned, statewide partnership of public educational agencies providing quality pooled programs 
for excess coverage that benefit our students. 
 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
This financial annual report consists of three parts: management’s discussion and analysis, financial statements, and 
supplementary information.   

 The financial statements include the Statements of Net Position, Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Change in Net Position, and Statements of Cash Flows, using the direct method for the combined 
operations of SELF for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2015 and 2014.  The notes to the financial 
statements are an integral part of the financial statements and provide details on SELF membership, 
accounting policies, claims liabilities, and other information in the statements. 

 The supplementary information includes required information on Claims Liability by type of program for 
the fiscal years ending June 30, 2015 and 2014, Claims Development Information for the last 10 years for 
self-insured program years by type of program, schedule of the JPA’s proportionate share of the net 
pension liability, schedule of the JPA’s contributions, notes to required supplementary information and 
other supplementary information as combining financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 
and 2014.  Each program/fund is a separate entity requiring separate documentation of all assets, liabilities, 
and net position.  Accounting for the individual programs/funds are maintained internally and provided to 
our users here to show the performance and activity of each program. 

 
 
Financial Stability 
SELF has an equity target of the difference between the expected (50%) and 95% confidence level overall on a 
discounted basis and a catastrophic component of about three ultimate losses, currently targeting $15 million for the 
Excess Liability Program. Loss reserves will be funded at no less than 50% (or expected) confidence level for each 
individual program year. Proper equity allows SELF to provide stable rates for members’ excess liability coverage 
above their retained limits of $1 million or $5 million.  The Excess Liability Program rates remained the same in 
2014/2015 from 2013/2014 rates, while increasing excess coverage from $25 million to $30 million.   



 

 
 

5. 

Financial Highlights – Statements of Net Position: 
The Statement of Net Position shows the balances in assets and liabilities, by program separated by current, long-
term, and capital assets.  The majority of assets are held to fund the claims liabilities, which account for 99% of all 
liabilities.   As of June 30, 2015, 10.3% of all assets were current while 89.7% were non-current; this is expected 
due to the nature of excess risk pooling.  Cash and cash equivalents account for 4% of all assets.  Investments 
account for 62% of all assets; 3% with maturities within one year and 97% with maturities greater than one year.    
Member Assessments represents the remaining eight years of a ten year fixed assessment plan to fund excess 
workers’ compensation claims from July 1, 1989 through June 30, 2010, with the current portion due in 2015/2016.  
SELF, like most self-insured workers’ compensation pools, has had to assess members, due to the continuing 
increases in indemnity expenses over the original estimates going back to the program’s inception in 1989. 
 
SELF currently owns a building located at 1531 I Street, in downtown Sacramento, CA, which represents 1% of all 
assets.  SELF has no long-term debt other than the reserved claims liabilities and claims administration expenses.   
 

   
 
SELF has received Accreditation with Excellence by the California Association of Joint Powers Authorities 
(CAJPA), since November 1994.  The CAJPA accreditation program is a national model of professional standards 
for risk management pools, which involves a detailed program study, evaluation, and committee review prior to 
approval.   
 

Schools Excess Liability Fund 
Statements of Net Position 

June 30, 2015, June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2013
 Totals 

 XL XWC  Building  2014/2015  2013/2014  2012/2013 

ASSETS          
   Current Assets $      6,271  $       9,469 $    79  $   15,819  $   15,810   $   22,355 
   Non-current Assets 41,324 95,994 0  137,318  145,496  142,425 
   Capital Assets 27  11 1,552  1,590  1,440   1,463 
Total Assets $    47,622 $   105,474 $      1,631  $  154,727  $  162,746   $  166,243 
          
LIABILITIES          
   Current Liabilities 10,232 5,797 3  16,032  10,353  7,355 
   Long-term Liabilities 13,931 92,674 0  106,605  108,500   122,608 
Total Liabilities $   24,163 $    98,471 $             3  $  122,637  $  118,853   $  129,963 
          
NET POSITION          
   Invested in Capital Assets 27 12 1,551  1,590  1,440  1,463 
   Undesignated 23,502 7,021 77  30,600  42,453  34,817 
Total Net Position $  23,529 $    7,033 $   1,628  $  32,190  $ 43,893  $  36,280 

 
 *Please note, amounts in thousands, may not foot and/or may vary from audited financial statements due to rounding. 

* Less than 1% 



 

 
 

6. 

Financial Highlights – Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position: 
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position shows the activity of SELF from July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2015 for the Excess Liability Program (XL), Excess Workers’ Compensation Program (XWC), and 
Building Fund, and a comparison with the prior fiscal year’s audited financial statements.    There are four basic 
parts to this statement: Operating revenues, Program expenses, General and Administrative expenses, and Non-
operating revenues and expenses.  Program expenses account for 89% of all expenditures and General and 
Administrative expenses were 11%. 
 
Operating revenue are the contributions by SELF’s members for financing pool-funding requirements and Member 
Assessments.  There were no additional Member Assessments in 2014/2015, only a small adjustment of prior 
assessments.  Rental income for the Building Fund is recorded under Non-operating revenues.   
 
Program expenses are expenses directly related to the program’s main function, such as claims indemnity, claim 
expenses, and reinsurance or excess insurance.  These are required costs of the fund that would be incurred by our 
members directly, even if SELF did not exist.   Claims payments increased approximately 56% from 2013/2014.  
Changes in claims estimates increased expenses $3 million in 2014/2015, compared to a decrease of $11 million in 
2013/2014.    Excess and reinsurance premiums increased 7% in 2014/2015, due to the increase in excess liability 
coverage limit from $25 million to $30 million, including members’ self-insured retentions.  
 
General and Administrative expenses are costs to manage and maintain each program, including in-house claims 
management, and indirect costs, such as actuarial reports, claims audits, and audit fees, which are required by law.  
Actual overhead for fiscal year 2014/2015 increased 14% in 2014/2015 and 6% in 2013/2014.   
 
Non-operating revenues and expenses are income and/or costs not directly related to the operation of the programs, 
including rental and investment income or loss.  They are reported in a separate section to comply with GASB 34, 
allowing financial statement users to see the true operating income or loss before any additional or non-typical items 
are included.   SELF receives rental income from tenants at our property at 1531 I Street, Sacramento, CA and 
investment income on retained equity in both the Excess Liability and Excess Workers’ Compensation Programs.    
Net Interest Income, which includes interest received and changes in the market value of investments, increased 6% 
in 2014/2015 from the prior year, due to the improving economy and market conditions. 
 

   Schools Excess Liability Fund 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Change in Net Position 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015, June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2013 
 Totals   
 XL XWC  Building  2014/2015  2013/2014  2012/2013 

Operating Revenue:          
   Premiums / Contributions $    10,294 $             0 $           0  $    10,294  $     9,874  $     9,829 
   Member Assessments   (10)  0  (10)  0  1,000 
Total Operating Revenues $    10,294 $         (10) $           0  $    10,284  $     9,874  $   10,829 

Program Expenses:            

    Provision for Claims & Claims Adj. Exp.  12,005 1,555 0  13,560  (4,433)  5,529 
    Commercial Reinsurance Premiums 7,060 0   0  7,060  6,605  6,610 
Total Program Expenses 19,065 1,555   20,620  2,172  12,139 
General & Administrative Expense 1,504 713 226  2,443  2,145  2,026 
Total Operating Expenses 20,569 2,268 226  23,063  4,317  14,165 
Operating Income (Loss) $   (10,275) $    (2,278) $     (226)  $  (12,779)  $     5,557  $   (3,336) 

Non-Operating Income / Expense:              

   Rental Income 0 0 255  255  240  62 

   Interest Income 566 859 0  1,425  1,816  283 

   Transfer (292) (58) 350  0  0  0 
   Other Income 3 1 1  5  0  415 
Total Non-operating Rev. (Exp.) $        277 $        802 $      606  $      1,685  $     2,056  $        760 
              
Change in Net Position $   (9,998) $   (1,476) $        380  $  (11,094)  $     7,613  $   (2,576) 
            
Net Position, Beginning Balance $    33,953 8,692 1,248  43,893  36,280  38,856 
Cumulative Effect of Change (426) (183) 0  (609)  0  0 
Net Position, Ending Balance $    23,529 7,033 1,628  32,190  43,893  36,280 

*Please note, amounts in thousands, may not foot and/or may vary from audited financial statements due to rounding.  Building Income and Expenses are 
recorded at gross amounts, whereas audited financial statements may net building expenses against income.  



 

 
 

7. 

Overall Financial Position: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As of June 30, 2015, SELF had over a 96% confidence level in the Excess Liability Program, which indicates that 
our actuaries have a high degree of certainty that the program is funded for all probable losses  The Excess Liability 
Program has benefited from many years with minimal claims activity.  While a few recent claims and the 
restatement of the prior year Net Position to record pension liability in compliance with GASB 68 has lowered 
equity 44% in 2014/2015, the program has sufficient equity due to a conservative capital target, striving to maintain 
funds to a 95% confidence level and three catastrophic ultimate losses above expected reserves. 
 
The Excess Workers’ Compensation Program has approximately a 70% confidence level, which is considered 
adequate.  The Excess Workers’ Compensation Program was affected by increases in claims costs, resulting in 
member assessments for claims between July 1, 1989 and June 30, 2010.  A ten year assessment plan was adopted in 
2013 and collected an additional $12 million in 2013/2014 and 2014/2015.  The plan will be reevaluated after the 
first five years.  Based on actuary reports for the Excess Workers’ Compensation Program, completed August 19, 
2015 and July 24, 2014 by Bickmore Risk Services, claim liabilities decreased 5%, or over $4.7 million between 
June 30, 2014 and 2015 estimates.   The Excess Workers’ Compensation Program net position decreased 23%, due 
to active claims management and resolution.   
 
SELF’s combined net position decreased 36% between fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 and year ending June 30, 
2015, due to claim reimbursements to members and the effects of recording the pension obligations in compliance 
with GASB 68, based on the CalPERS GASB 68 Accounting Valuation Report prepared for SELF as of the 
measurement date of June 30, 2014.   
 
SELF owns and manages a building in downtown Sacramento, at 
1531 I Street, Sacramento, California.  The building was 
purchased in 1993 with retained equity and is considered an 
investment of SELF.  The equity in the Building Fund increased 
22% in 2014/2015.  Approximately 65% of the building is leased 
to long-term tenants, including the American Lung Association of 
California.  The balance is used as the SELF office for both the 
Excess Liability and Excess Workers’ Compensation Programs.  
SELF maintains the building in order to protect and enhance this 
investment of our members’ funds.  SELF also has a state of the 
art conference center, which is available for use at no charge to 
any of our members.   
 
 
 
 
 

* Less than 1% 



 

 
 

8. 

Individual Program Overview: 

Excess Liabilities: 

SELF was established with the Excess Liability Program.   In November 1985, a group of concerned school business 
officials met and formed a steering committee to determine the feasibility of establishing a statewide school excess 
liability pool. They wanted to combat the growing liability insurance crisis and provide public educational agencies 
with a stable and broad liability coverage product.  SELF began offering excess liability coverage March 1, 1986.   
By the end of the first year, SELF had 102 members in the Excess Liability Program.  In 2014/2015, SELF had 538 
active members across the state of California.   
 
SELF provides an excess liability limit of $30 million, with optional excess liability available to $55 million, 
through a combination of self-insurance, reinsurance, and excess.  SELF members have retained limits of $1 million 
or $5 million.  In 2014/2015, SELF recognized several claims from prior years.  Actual claims paid in 2014/2015 
were just over $4 million, while reserves increased $8 million; this includes recognition of a claim that unexpectedly 
settled after the close of the fiscal year.   The net effect of Claims paid and the Change in Claims Reserves for 
Excess Liability was over twice the budgeted amount.  
 
 
Excess Workers’ Compensation: 

July 1, 1989, SELF launched the Excess Workers’ Compensation Program, which closed after the June 30, 2010 
fiscal year, and had 50 members during its tenure, with member retentions of $250,000 to $2 million.  SELF 
purchased excess workers’ compensation insurance for all policy years, with self-insured retentions of $1 million to 
$2 million.  SELF continues to manage the runoff of workers’ compensation claims between July 1, 1989 and June 
30, 2010.   
 
Adverse claims development in historic claims resulted in a net deficit position, therefore, a multi-year assessment 
plan was adopted beginning June 2003 to resolve the deficit position and build reserves sufficient to maintain a 
positive net position and provide a minimum 65% confidence level.  The original assessment plan recalculated 
equity yearly and in January 2007 was extended to fifteen years, to spread the assessment over the life of the claims 
liability.   In 2013, a fixed ten year assessment plan was initiated to provide the members with certainty of their 
annual assessments. The current plan will be evaluated after the fifth year, 2017/2018.  SELF has collected 
additional contributions of $52 million through 2014/2015.    
 
SELF reimbursed members over $6.3 million for claims, while the estimated claims decreased $4.7 million for $1.5 
million net claims and claims adjustment expense realized in 2014/2015 for self-insured claims from July 1, 1989 to 
June 30, 2010. 
 
 
 



 

 
 

9. 

Investments: 
 

 
 
SELF held $102.6 million in total funds, as of June 30, 2015.   Approximately 7% was liquid in either bank accounts 
or the Local Agency Investment Fund, which is considered liquid.  93% of funds are held in separate investment 
portfolios for the Excess Liability and Excess Workers’ Compensation Programs, to maximize yield.  Each portfolio 
is managed based on the cash flow needs of the programs.  Excess Workers’ Compensation investments are 
generally invested longer term, due to the extended nature of these claims.  Both portfolios are managed to 
maximize yields over time. 
  

 
 
 

 



 

 
 

10. 

Budget verses Actual: 
SELF develops an annual budget, which was reviewed by SELF’s Finance Committee on June 12, 2014 and 
approved by the Board of Directors on June 27, 2014.  SELF operates as a business type entity, collecting 
contributions from members each fiscal year based on the estimated funding for the current year and uses retained 
equity in the program to maintain consistent rates from year to year.  For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014 and 
ending June 30, 2015, 100% of the SELF’s revenues were from member contributions.   
 

Budget vs. Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
 Variance 

 Budget  Actual  Amount  Percent 

Operating Revenues $  10,100      $  10,284    $     184       2  % 
Program Expenses (11,634)  (20,620)  (8,986)    77 % 
General & Administrative Expenses (2,267)  (2,443)  (176)      8 % 
Total Operating Income (Loss) $ (3,801)  $ (12,779)  $ (8,978)  236%  

 

Non-operating Revenue (Expense) 1,167  1,685                 518   44 % 
Change in Net Position $ (2,634)  $ (11,094)  $ (8,460)    321 % 
 

 
*Please note, amounts in thousands, may not foot and/or may vary from audited financial statements due to rounding. 

 
Actual amounts for the fiscal year versus the adopted budget are included to show SELF’s financial performance in 
relation to the annual plan for the programs.  Revenues were 2% over the adopted budget and increased 4% from 
prior year actuals.   Total expenses were 66% greater than the adopted budget and 449% greater than the prior year, 
which had a negative change in claims and claims adjustment expense.  Total program expenses were 77% over the 
adopted budget, mainly due to the realization of previously unknown claims from prior fiscal years.  Claims and 
claims adjustment expenses were 161% greater, while reinsurance expenses were 10% greater than the adopted 
budget.  General and Administrative expense was 8% greater than the adopted budgeted amount and 14% greater 
than the prior year.   Non-operating revenues were 45% greater than the adopted budget and 18% less than the prior 
year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 
 

11. 

Budget 2014/2015: 
   Schools Excess Liability Fund 

Adopted Budget 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015, June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2013 

    
 XL XWC  Building  2014/2015  2013/2014  2012/2013 

Operating Revenue:          
   Premiums / Contributions $  10,100 $            0 $            0  $  10,100  $  9,850  $   9,656 
   Member Assessments  0 0  0   0   0  (432) 
Total Operating Revenues $  10,100 $            0  $            0   $  10,100  $  9,850  $   9,224 
Program Expenses:            
    Provision for Claims & Claims Adj. Exp.  3,500 1,700 0  5,200  3,445  2,000 
    Commercial Reinsurance Premiums 6,434 0   0  6,434  6,529  6,497 
Total Program Expenses 9,934 1,700 0  11,634  9,974  8,497 
General & Administrative Expense 1,339 714 214  2,267  2,375  2,054 
Total Operating Expenses 11,273 2,414 214  13,901  12,349  10,551 
Operating Income (Loss) $  (1,173) $  (2,414) $      (214)  $  (3,801)  $  (2,499)  $  (1,327) 

Non-Operating Income / Expense:              

   Rental Income 0 0 255  255  236  158 
   Interest Income 513 399 0  912  1,101  1,778 
   Other Income 0 0 0  0  13  0 
Total Non-operating Rev. (Exp.) $        513 $        399 $        255  $    1,167  $    1,350  $    1,936 
              
Change in Net Position $     (660) $  (2,015) $          41  $  (2,634)  $  (1,149)  $       609 
            

 
 
Future Budget: 
The Schools Excess Liability Fund’s fiscal year 2015/2016 Operating Budget was reviewed by the Finance 
Committee on June 11, 2015 and approved by the Board of Directors on June 19, 2015.    
 

   Schools Excess Liability Fund 
Adopted Budget 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015, June 30, 2014, and June 30, 2013 
    
 XL XWC  Building  2015/2016  2014/2015  2013/2014 

Operating Revenue:          
   Premiums / Contributions $  10,673 $           0 $            0  $  10,673  $  10,100  $  9,850 
   Member Assessments   0 0   0  0   0 
Total Operating Revenues $  10,673 $           0  $            0   $  10,673  $  10,100  $  9,850 

Program Expenses:            

    Provision for Claims & Claims Adj. Exp.  2,822 0  0  2,822  5,200  3,445 
    Commercial Reinsurance Premiums 7,383 0  0  7,383  6,434  6,529 
Total Program Expenses 10,205 0   10,205  11,634  9,974 
General & Administrative Expense 1,460 543 282  2,285  2,267  2,375 
Total Operating Expenses 11,665 543 282  12,490  13,901  12,349 
Operating Income (Loss) $    (992) $   (543) $    (282)  $  (1,817)  $  (3,801)  $  (2,499) 

Non-Operating Income / Expense:               

   Rental Income 0 0 234  234  255  236 
   Interest Income 767 1,296 0  2,063  1,428  1,101 
   Other Income 0 0 0  0  0  13 
Total Non-operating Rev. (Exp.) $      767 $  1,296 $      234  $   2,297  $    1,683  $    1,350 
               

Change in Net Position $    (225) $     753 $     (48)  $      480  $  (2,118)  $  (1,149) 
            
Net Position, Beginning Balance $ 24,249 $  7,248 $  1,303  $  32,800  $  35,434  $  40,028 
Net Position, Ending Balance $ 24,024 $  8,001 $  1,255  $  33,280  $  33,316  $  38,879 

 
*Please note, amounts in thousands, may not foot and/or may vary from audited financial statements due to rounding. 

 



 

 
 

12. 

Factors Bearing on the Future: 
 
Equity Position:  
The Schools Excess Liability Fund is accredited by California Association of Joint Powers Authorities (CAJPA) 
with Excellence.   Their accreditation is based on a model of professional standards for risk management pools.  
CAJPA standards require a Capital Reserve, which sets a safety reserve to safeguard against future financial 
uncertainty, and measures for financial stability.    Several formulas have been established to measure a pool’s 
financial stability and sensitivity to risk.  There are five key formulas:  Claims Liability Confidence Levels, Equity 
to Self -Insured Retention (SIR), Loss Reserves to Equity, Contributions to Equity, and Claims Liability with 
Premium Method.   Both programs have more than six months of cash flow available for normal ongoing operations 
and investments are sufficiently liquid to provide funds for any unexpected claim payments.   
 
Excess Liability: 
As of June 30, 2015, the Excess Liability Program had ideal levels of funding, based on all five equity target 
formulas.  The program has a 96% confidence level, indicating that it is well funded.  The contributions to equity 
and loss reserves to equity are well within the desired levels.  The equity to self-insured retention level and claims 
liability with premium method are also within the desired measures.   Furthermore, this program is only 13% under 
SELF’s ambitious Target Capital of a 95% confidence level and additional funding for three catastrophic losses.      
 
Excess Workers’ Compensation: 
As of June 30, 2015, the Excess Workers’ Compensation Program possessed three of the five equity targets.    The 
program is just under a 70% confidence level.  The assessment contributions to equity and equity to self-insured 
retention levels are also within the desired measures.  The only factor that is not in the desired range is the loss 
reserves to equity, with loss reserves approximately 14 times the net available to fund claims.  This is a measure of a 
pools ability to absorb unexpected losses.  Since this program has been closed for five years, this factor is less 
relevant.  The last factor, claims liability with premium method, is not applicable.  This program is 21% under 
SELF’s ambitious Target Capital of a 95% confidence level and additional funding for three catastrophic losses.      
 

 
 

Future of Organization: 
 
SELF is proactive in managing claims and risk factors, providing expert assistance to our members, even in claims 
below our retention level.  SELF provides a variety of training tools and strives to improve the knowledge of our 
members in the area of risk management.  The Excess Workers’ Compensation Program has improved with active 
claims management and resolution.   SELF has been working with our members and their third party administrators 
to audit claims and identify opportunities to close open claims via Compromise and Release, realizing cost savings 
for our members and reducing liabilities.  SELF will continue to seek potential prospects in the insurance market to 
provide better coverage for our members, explore new opportunities to improve programs, and provide costs savings 
for our members.   
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13. 

  2015   2014  
 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 
 Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 6,406,534 $ 8,290,947 
 Receivables: 
  Interest and other receivables  361,295  304,990 
  Member receivables  91  - 
 Investments maturing within one year (Note 2)  2,653,922  802,262 
 Current portion of member assessment receivable (Note 3)  6,355,281  6,373,695 
 Prepaid expenses  42,159  38,004 
  
   Total current assets  15,819,282  15,809,898 
 
Investments, less portion maturing within one year (Note 2)  92,840,360  94,652,901 
Member assessment receivable (Note 3)  44,477,964  50,843,120 
Capital assets (Note 4): 
 Investment in building, net of accumulated depreciation 
  of $1,596,932 and $1,495,231 for 2015 and 2014, respectively  1,551,368  1,397,546 
 Furniture and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 
  of $317,218 and $303,805 for 2015 and 2014, respectively  38,297  42,159 
 
   Total non-current assets  138,907,989  146,935,726 
   
   Total assets  154,727,271  162,745,624 
 
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
Deferred outflows of resources – pensions (Note 6)  99,437  -  
 
LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities:   
 Accounts payable  432,801  453,280 
  Current portion of unpaid claims and claim adjustment 
  expenses (Note 5)  14,891,358  9,900,000 
   
   Total current liabilities  15,324,159  10,353,280 
 
Net pension liability  542,029  - 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (Note 5)  106,604,738  108,499,378 
 
   Total liabilities  122,470,926  118,852,658 
 
Contingencies (Note 8) 
 
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
Deferred inflows of resources – pensions (Note 6)  166,153  - 
 
NET POSITION 
Net position: 
 Net investment in capital assets (Note 4)  1,589,665  1,439,705 
 Unrestricted (Note 7)  30,599,964  42,453,261 
 
   Total net position $ 32,189,629 $ 43,892,966 
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  2015   2014  
 
Operating revenues: 
 Member contributions $ 10,293,954 $ 9,873,823  
 Member assessment (Note 3)  (9,875)  -  
 
   Total operating revenues  10,284,079  9,873,823  
 
Operating expenses: 
 Provision for claims and claim adjustment 
  expenses (Note 5)  13,559,471  (4,433,071) 
 Commercial reinsurance premiums  7,060,714  6,605,173  
 
   Total operating expenses  20,620,185  2,172,102  
 
 General and administrative expenses:   
  Contract services  611,886  510,712 
  Personnel costs (Note 6)  1,141,498  927,970 
  Administrative expenses  370,153  334,657 
  Travel expenses  81,816  112,237 
  Building expenses  122,985  134,418 
  Depreciation (Note 4)  115,114  124,603 
    
    Total general and administrative expenses  2,443,452  2,144,597 
 
    Total operating expenses  23,063,637  4,316,699 
 
    Total operating (loss) income  (12,779,558)  5,557,124 
 
Non-operating revenues: 
 Rental income  254,822  239,538 
 Investment income  1,425,311  1,816,379 
 Other income   4,540  - 
  
    Total non-operating revenues  1,684,673  2,055,917 
 
    Change in net position  (11,094,885)  7,613,041 
 
Net position, beginning of year, originally stated  43,892,966  36,279,925 
 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle  (608,452)  - 
 
Net position, beginning of year, as restated  43,284,514  36,279,925 
 
Net position, end of year $ 32,189,629 $ 43,892,966 
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  2015   2014  
Cash flows from operating activities: 
 Cash received from members and others $ 16,667,343 $ 16,214,813 
 Cash paid for claims and settlements  (10,462,753)  (6,673,390) 
 Cash paid for reinsurance  (7,064,869)  (6,595,886) 
 Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services  (1,207,319)  (1,094,311) 
 Cash paid for employees services  (1,282,930)  (927,970) 
 
     Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities  (3,350,528)  923,256 
 
Cash flows used in capital and related financing activities: 
 Capital expenditures for building, furniture and equipment  (265,074)  (101,890) 
 
Cash flows from investing activities: 
 Securities purchased   (61,316,066)  (76,004,554) 
 Securities sold and matured  61,353,393  74,164,378 
 Rental income received  254,822  239,538 
 Interest received  1,439,040  1,088,333 
 
     Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities  1,731,189  (512,305) 
 
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (1,884,413)  309,061 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year  8,290,947  7,981,886 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 6,406,534 $ 8,290,947 
 
Reconciliation of operating (loss) income to net cash 
 (used in) provided by operating activities: 
 
  Operating (loss) income $ (12,779,558) $ 5,557,124 
 
  Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 
   net cash (used in) provided by operating activities: 
    Depreciation  115,114  124,603 
    Increase in member receivable  (306)  5,003 
    Decrease in assessment receivable  6,383,570  6,335,987 
    Increase in prepaid expenses  (4,155)  9,287 
    Decrease in accounts payable  (20,479)  (2,287) 
    Increase in unpaid claims and claim adjustment 
     expenses  3,096,718  (11,106,461) 
 
     Total adjustments  9,429,030  (4,633,868) 
 
     Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ (3,350,528) $ 923,256 
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16. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
General Description:  Schools Excess Liability Fund (SELF) is a statewide Joint Powers Agency 
established as a program to pool excess liability and workers' compensation coverage for participating 
California public educational agencies.  Effective July 1, 2010, SELF no longer offered an Excess 
Workers' Compensation Program.  SELF will continue to provide administration of this program through 
the claims run-out period.  Participation in SELF is voluntary, and members must remain in the program 
for three fiscal years before they are eligible to withdraw. 
 
Membership:  Under the SELF Joint Powers Agreement, member districts must make a three-year 
commitment to participate in SELF.  Mid-term cancellation or withdrawal is not permitted and members' 
annual contributions are due in advance.  As such, all contributions are recognized evenly over the 
applicable coverage year.  Withdrawing districts may be entitled to a refund under certain conditions five 
years after withdrawal.  There were no amounts held for member withdrawal at June 30, 2015 and 
June 30, 2014. 
 
SELF’s Excess Liability Program membership currently consist of approximately 538 public educational 
entities including school districts, county offices of education, community college districts, charter schools, 
regional occupational programs and education affiliated joint powers authorities. 
 
The Excess Workers’ Compensation Program was discontinued by the Board in 2010, however at the 
height of the program the covered payroll was more than $8.9 billion with membership consisting of entire 
JPAs, individual school districts and community college districts. 
 
Basis of Accounting:  The accompanying financial statements are presented as a proprietary fund on the 
accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Governmental Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.  
Under the accrual basis, revenues and the related assets are recognized when earned, and expenses 
and related liabilities are recognized when the obligation is incurred.  Operating revenues include member 
contributions net of any applicable rate credits and member assessments.  Operating expenses include 
the provision for claims and claim adjustment expenses, insurance premiums, premium rebates, and 
general and administrative expenses.  All other revenues and expenses are considered non-operating.   
 
Fund Accounting:  The accounts of SELF are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity.  SELF’s funds have been combined for the presentation of 
the financial statements.  The operation of each fund is accounted for by providing a set of separate self-
balancing accounts that comprised its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues and expenses.  SELF 
maintains three funds that are considered proprietary/enterprise funds.  Proprietary funds are used to 
account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is 
necessary or useful to sound financial administration. 
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17. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Programs:   
 
Excess Liability: Since 1986 SELF has provided excess liability insurance to schools and community 
colleges.   
 
 Policy Years   Member Retentions  SELF Layer 
 1986–8/4/1989   $1M    $1M – $10M 
 8/5/1989–1990   $1M    $1M – $12.5M  
 1991    $1M    $1M – $15M 
 1992–2006   $1M – $5M   $1M – $15M 
 2007–2008   $1M – $5M   $1M – $20M 
 2009    $1M – $5M   Fully Insured 
 2010–2014   $1M – $5M   $1M – $25M 
 2015    $1M – $5M   $1M – $30M 
 
With optional purchased coverage: 
 
     OEL -   OEL -   OEL -   OEL - 
 Policy Years  Option 1   Option 2   Option 3   Option 4  
 1990  $6.5M – $12.5 
 1991–2000  $5M – $15M   $10M – $15M 
 2001  $5M – $15M   $10M – $15M   $15M – $25M   $10M – $40M 
 2002  $5M – $15M   $10M – $15M   $35M – $15M 
 2003-2006  $5M – $15M   $10M – $15M   $30M – $15M 
 2007  $5M – $20M   $20M – $25M   
 2008  $5M – $20M   $20M – $25M   $5M – $45M 
 2009  $20M – $25M   $25M – $25M   $5M – $45M 
 2010–2014  $20M – $25M   $25M – $25M 
 2015  $25M – $30M 
 
Excess Worker’s Compensation: In 1990 SELF added excess worker’s compensation coverage. 2010 
was the last policy year SELF offered excess workers’ compensation insurance coverage. 
 
 Policy Years   Member Retentions  SELF Retention 
 1990–1999   $250K – $2M   $2M 
 2000–2004   $250K – $1M   $1M 
 2005    $300K -- $1M   $1M 
 2006-2010   $350K -- $1M   $1M 
 
Excess Insurance:  SELF enters into excess insurance agreements whereby it cedes various amounts of 
risks to another entity.  Risks ceded are treated as though they are not risks for which SELF is liable.   
 
Cash Equivalents:  Cash equivalents are investments readily convertible into known amounts of cash with 
original maturities at date of purchase of less than three months. 
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18. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Investment in Building, Furniture and Equipment:  Building, furniture and equipment are carried at cost.  
Depreciation is determined using the straight-line method, over the useful lives of the related assets.  The 
useful lives of the building and improvements are estimated to be thirty years.  SELF has forty-five 
percent of the building available to lease to third parties under noncancellable leases. 
 
The useful lives of furniture and equipment are estimated to be five years.  When assets are sold or 
otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, 
and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of revenues, expenses and change in net 
position for the period.  The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred. 
 
SELF does not believe there to be any impairment of its capital assets at June 30, 2015. 
 
Investments and Investment Pools:  SELF records its cash in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and 
its other investments at fair value.  Changes in fair value are reported as non-operating revenue in the 
statement of revenues, expenses and change in net position.  The effect of recording investments and 
LAIF at fair value is reflected as a component of investment income on the statement of revenues, 
expenses and change in net position. 
 
Fair value of investments and LAIF has been determined by the sponsoring government based on quoted 
market prices.  SELF's investment in LAIF has been valued based on the relative fair value of the entire 
external pool to the external pool's respective amortized cost. 
 
Member Assessment Receivable: SELF's JPA Agreement allows for assessments to address deficit 
position assets.  Assessments are based on a pro rata share of each member's contribution for each 
policy year assessed. In the event that a member fails to meet their payment schedule, the member shall 
be charged interest in a manner and amount earned on funds deposited in LAIF, at the time the member 
is delinquent. 
 
Provisions for Unpaid Claims and Claim Adjustment Expenses:  SELF's policy is to establish unpaid 
claims and claim adjustment expenses based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have been 
reported but not settled, and of claims that have been incurred but not reported.  The length of time for 
which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved.  Estimated amounts of 
salvage, subrogation and reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims are deducted from the liability.  SELF 
increases the liability for allocated and unallocated claim adjustment expenses.  Because actual claims 
costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrine of legal liability, and damage 
awards, the process used in computing unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses does not 
necessarily result in an exact amount, particularly for excess coverages.  Unpaid claims and claim 
adjustment expenses are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to 
produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency, other economic and social 
factors and estimated payment dates.  Adjustments to unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses are 
charged or credited to expense in the period in which they are made.  The current portion of the claims 
liabilities has been estimated by an independent actuary using cash flow projections and current claims 
information. 
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19. 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Miscellaneous 2% at 55 Risk Pool under the California Public Employees’ Retirement 
System (CalPERS) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Pool. For this purpose, benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms.  
 
Member Contributions:   Operating revenues and expenses include all activities necessary to achieve the 
objectives of SELF and result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the 
fund.  Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and give up essentially equal values.  
Non-operating revenues and expenses include investment activities, building income from non-exchange 
and other non-essential activity.   
 
Commercial Reinsurance Premiums:  It is the policy of SELF to purchase additional insurance which 
covers losses greater than the limits of SELF's excess coverage.  Such additional insurance coverage is 
offered to members through an Optional Excess Liability Program (OEL).  The OEL premium is reported 
as part of Member Contributions. 
 
Income Taxes: SELF is an organization comprised of public agencies and is exempt from Federal income 
and California franchise taxes.  Accordingly, no provision for Federal or state income taxes has been 
made in the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions.  Significant estimates for SELF include unpaid claims and claim adjustment expense and 
member assessment receivable.  These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual 
results could differ from these estimates. 
 
Reclassifications: Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform with current year 
financial statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of 
operations or net position.  
 
New Accounting Pronouncements: In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement 68, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pensions.  This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, 
Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers and Statement No. 50, Pension 
Disclosures, as they relate to governments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as 
trusts or similar arrangements that meet certain criteria.  Statement 68 requires governments providing 
defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the 
first time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits.  
The Statement also enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new note disclosures 
and RSI.  This Statement is effective for the JPA’s financial period beginning July 1, 2014. The JPA did 
not retroactively implement these statements as of July 1, 2013 because the defined benefit plan the JPA 
participates in, the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), did not have the 
information readily available. Therefore, certain disclosures required under previous GASB statements 
are disclosed for fiscal year 2014. Based on the implementation of Statement No. 68, the JPA’s July 1, 
2014 net position was restated by $608,452 because of the recognition of the net pension liability.   
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20. 

NOTE 2 – CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash, cash equivalents and investments as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 are reported at fair value and 
consisted of the following: 
 
  Rating   2015   2014  
 
Cash and cash equivalents: 
 Cash on hand and in bank  $ 686,244 $ 427,721 
 Money Market   880,300  320,755 
 Local Agency Investment Fund   4,839,990  7,542,471 
 
   Total cash and cash equivalents   6,406,534  8,290,947 
 
Investments: 
 United States Agency – FHLB, FNMA AA+  38,693,285  48,573,304 
 FHLMC   2,861,727  1,202,229 
 Corporate Notes AAA, AA+, A+, AA, A, A-, AA-  28,828,508  27,374,004 
 U.S. Treasury TSY  2,023,906  - 
 Certificates of deposit A+, A-1  13,746,352  14,953,871 
 Municipal bonds and notes AA+, AAA, AA  9,340,504  3,351,755 
 
   Total investments   95,494,282  95,455,163 
  
   Total cash, cash equivalents and 
    investments  $ 101,900,816 $ 103,746,110 
 
Reconciliation to statement of net position: 
 Current assets: 
  Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,406,534 $ 8,290,947 
  Investments  2,653,922  802,262 
 
      9,060,456  9,093,209 
 
 Non-current assets: 
  Investments  92,840,360  94,652,901 
   
   Total $ 101,900,816 $ 103,746,110 
 
Custodial Credit Risk:  Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC.  At 
June 30, 2015, the carrying amount of SELF's accounts was $685,922 and bank balances were 
$1,135,368.  Of the bank balances, $885,368 were not covered by FDIC insurance, but are fully 
collateralized. 
 
Money Market:  SELF has a portion of its cash and cash equivalents in a money market account at a third 
party custodian.  The money market account is not covered by FDIC insurance, but is fully collateralized. 
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21. 

NOTE 2 – CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund:  SELF places certain funds with the State of California's Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF).  SELF is a voluntary participant in LAIF, which is regulated by California 
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California and the 
Pooled Money Investment Board.  The State Treasurer's Office pools these funds with those of other 
governmental agencies in the State and invests the cash.  The fair value of SELF's investment in the pool is 
reported in the accompanying financial statements based upon SELF's pro-rata share of the fair value 
provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio).  Because the 
Group's deposits are maintained in a recognized Pooled Investment Fund (Fund) under the care of a third 
party and the Group's share of the pool does not consist of specific, identifiable investment securities owned 
by the Group, no disclosure of the individual deposits and investments or related custodial credit risk 
classifications is required.  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  Funds are accessible and transferable 
to the master account within twenty-four hours notice.  Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are 
collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, and floating 
rate securities issued by Federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises and corporations.  LAIF is 
administered by the State Treasurer.  As of June 30, 2015, this Fund was yielding approximately 0.269% 
interest annually.  LAIF investments are audited annually by the Pooled Money Investment Board and the 
State Controller's Office.  Copies of this audit may be obtained from the State Treasurer's Office:  915 
Capitol Mall; Sacramento, California  95814.  The Pooled Money Investment Board has established policies, 
goals and objectives to make certain that their goal of safety, liquidity and yield are not jeopardized. 
 
Investment Interest Rate Risk:  SELF's investment policy limits investment maturities to a maximum of 
five years, with Board approval for any investment purchase with a maturity beyond five years as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.  Maturities of 
investments held at June 30, 2015 consist of the following: 
 
  Maturity  
     Less Than   Between One 
  Fair Value   One Year   and Five Years  
Investment maturities: 
 United States Agency – FHLB, FNMA $ 38,693,285 $ - $ 38,693,285 
 FHLMC  2,861,727  -  2,861,727 
 Corporate Notes  28,828,508  -  28,828,508 
 U.S. Treasury  2,023,906  -  2,023,906 
 Certificates of deposit  13,746,352  -  13,746,352 
 Municipal bonds and notes  9,340,504  2,653,922  6,686,582 
 
    $ 95,494,282 $ 2,653,922 $ 92,840,360 
 
Maturities of investments held at June 30, 2014 consist of the following: 
  Maturity  
     Less Than   Between One 
  Fair Value   One Year   and Five Years  
Investment maturities: 
 United States Agency – FHLB, FNMA $ 48,573,304 $ - $ 48,573,304 
 FHLMC  1,202,229  -  1,202,229 
 Corporate Notes  27,374,004  -  27,374,004 
 Certificates of deposit  14,953,871  500,087  14,453,784 
 Municipal bonds and notes  3,351,755  302,175  3,049,580 
 
    $ 95,455,163 $ 802,262 $ 94,652,901 
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22. 

NOTE 2 – CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investment Credit Risk:  SELF's investment policy limits investment choices to obligations of the United 
States Treasury, its agencies and instrumentalities, Federal agency or United Sates sponsored enterprise 
obligations, State of California or any local agency within the state, Banker’s Acceptances Commercial 
short-term paper, corporate medium-term notes, FDIC insured or fully collateralized time certificates of 
deposit located in California, negotiable certificates of deposit issued by nationally or state-chartered 
bank, savings, or federal associations, State of California's Local Agency Investment Fund, insured 
savings or money market accounts, money market funds registered the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Sec. 80a-1 et seq.), mortgage 
securities or obligations, The California Asset Management Program, and Supranationals located within 
the United States (CA Gov. Code §53651(j)).  At June 30, 2015 and 2014, all investments, excluding 
LAIF, were issued, registered and held by SELF's agent in the Agency's name. 
 
Concentration of Investment Credit Risk:  SELF attempts to limit its investments in any one bank or 
corporation to no more than 5% of SELF’s total investments at the time of purchase.  At June 30, 2015 
and 2014, SELF had the following investments that represent more than five percent of the SELF's net 
investments: 
 2015 2014 
 
 FNMA 41% 35% 
 FHLMC 0% 10% 
 Tenn Valley Authority 5% 5% 
 
 
NOTE 3 – MEMBER ASSESSMENT RECEIVABLE 
 
Adverse loss development and increases in the incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims liability resulted 
in a deficit fund position, for the certain policy years, in the Excess Workers' Compensation program.  
Although the program has assets for continued operation, the board approved an assessment of Excess 
Workers’ Compensation as provided in SELF's JPA Agreement.  Assessments are based on a pro rata 
share of each member's contributions for each year assessed.  The assessment plan provides for 
collection from members for the ten year period from 2012–13 through 2021–22 with a review of funding 
status in the 2017–2018 fiscal year.  At June 30, 2015 and 2014 SELF made no allowance for uncollected 
accounts as management estimated the accounts to be materially collectable.  The assessment 
receivables at June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows: 
 
  2015   2014 
 

Member assessment receivable $ 50,833,245 $ 57,216,815 
 
Less current portion of member assessment 
 receivable  (6,355,281)  (6,373,695) 
 
Member assessment receivable, non-current $ 44,477,964 $ 50,843,120 
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NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Activity for capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 included the following: 
 
  2015   2014 
 

Capital assets, net of depreciation – beginning of year $ 1,439,705 $ 1,462,418 
Purchases  265,074  101,890 
Current year depreciation  (115,114)  (124,603) 
 
Capital assets, net of depreciation – end of year $ 1,589,665 $ 1,439,705 
 
Investment in building, net of accumulated 
 depreciation $ 1,551,368 $ 1,397,546 
Furniture and equipment, net of accumulated 
 depreciation  38,297  42,159 
 
  $ 1,589,665 $ 1,439,705 

 
 
NOTE 5 – UNPAID CLAIMS AND CLAIM ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES 
 
As discussed in Note 1, SELF established a liability for both reported and unreported insured events for 
the Excess Workers' Compensation and the Excess Liability programs.  The following represents 
changes in those aggregate liabilities during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014: 
 
  2015   2014 
 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses, 
 beginning of year $ 118,399,378 $ 129,507,838 
 
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses: 
 Provision for covered events of current year  2,798,997  2,740,355 
 Change in the provision for covered events of prior years  10,760,474  (7,173,426) 
 
   Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses  13,559,471  (4,433,071) 
 
Payments: 
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to 
  covered events of current year  -  - 
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to 
  covered events of prior years  10,462,753  6,675,389 
 
   Total payments  10,462,753  6,675,389 
 
   Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses, 
    end of year $ 121,496,096 $ 118,399,378 
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NOTE 5 – UNPAID CLAIMS AND CLAIM ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES (Continued) 
 
The components of the unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 
were as follows: 
 
  2015   2014 
 
Reported claims $ 74,322,042 $ 79,012,712 
Claims incurred but not reported  38,215,947  33,130,841 
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE)  8,958,107  6,255,825 
 
      121,496,096  118,399,378 
 
Less current portion  (14,891,358)  (9,900,000) 
  
     $ 106,604,738 $ 108,499,378 
 
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, this liability was reported at present value using an expected future 
investment yield assumption of 1.75% for the Liability Program and 2.75% for the Workers' Compensation 
Program.  The workers' compensation discount rate has been adjusted for the years ended 
June 30, 2015 and 2014 to reflect the fact that a portion of the necessary assets is not available.  The 
undiscounted liability was $146,789,000 and $144,736,000 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE 6 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND  
 
General Information about the Public Employer’s Retirement Fund  
 
Plan Description: SELF contributes to the Miscellaneous 2% at 55 Risk Pool under the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement 
system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalPERS.  The Plan provides retirement and 
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries.  A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements is established by State statutes 
within the Public Employees' Retirement Law.  The Plan selects optional benefit provisions from the 
benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through Board approval.  CalPERS 
issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report.  CalPERS issues a publicly available financial 
report that can be obtained at https://www.calpers.ca.gov/docs/forms-publications/cafr-2014.pdf 
 
Funding Policy:  New employees hired after January 1, 2013 are subject to the California Public 
Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) and related statutory changes.   PEPRA requires 
contributions from employees to the defined benefit plan equal to one-half of normal cost of the plan.  For 
2013/2014 employees subject to the PEPRA regulations are required to contribution 6.25% of their 
annual covered salary.  Participants not subject to PEPRA are required to contribute 7% of their annual 
covered salary. Under a 2006 Board resolution, SELF makes the contribution required of SELF 
management staff on their behalf and for their account. SELF is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate. SELF's contribution rate on covered payroll for PEPRA employees is 6.25%, as required 
by law and 14.873% all other employees for the year ended June 30, 2015. The contribution requirement 
of plan members and SELF are established and may be amended by CalPERS and related statutory 
changes.  For the year ended June 30, 2015, SELF's annual pension cost was $(293). SELF's 
contributions to CalPERS for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2012, 2013 and 2014 were $145,608, 
$115,572 and $98,232, respectively, and equal 100% of the required contributions for each year. 
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NOTE 6 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND (Continued) 
 
Benefits Provided: The benefits for the defined benefit plans are based on members’ years of service, 
age, final compensation, and benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of 
eligible members or beneficiaries. Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to 
date after five years of credited service. 
 
Contributions: The benefits for the defined benefit pension plans are funded by contributions from 
members and employers, and earnings from investments. Member and employer contributions are a 
percentage of applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law and 
depend on the respective employer’s benefit formulas. Employer contribution rates are determined by 
periodic actuarial valuations or by state statute. Actuarial valuations are based on the benefit formulas 
and employee groups of each employer. Employer contributions, including lump sum contributions made 
when agencies first join the Pool, are credited with a market value adjustment in determining contribution 
rates.  
 
Required contribution rates for active plan members and employers as a percentage of payroll for the 
year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows: 
 
Members – The member contribution rate was 7.0 percent of applicable member earnings for fiscal year 

2013-14.  
 
Employers – The employer contribution rate was 13.369 percent of applicable member earnings. 
 
The JPA contributed $75,009 to the plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

 
At June 30, 2015, the JPA reported a liability of $542,029 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an CalPERS actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
JPA’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the JPA’s long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school JPAs, 
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2014, the JPA’s proportion was 0.02193 percent, which was an 
increase of 0.00107 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2013. 
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NOTE 6 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND (Continued) 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the JPA recognized pension expense of $(293).  At June 30, 2015, the 
JPA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from 
the following sources: 
 
  Deferred Outflows   Deferred Inflows 
  of Resources   of Resources 
 
Difference between expected and $ - $ - 
 actual experience  
 
Changes of assumptions $ - $ - 
 
Net differences between projected and 
 actual earnings on investments $ - $ 136,698 
 
Changes in proportion and differences 
 between JPA contributions and  
 proportionate share of contributions $ - $ 29,455 
 
Contributions made subsequent to 
 measurement date $ 99,437 $ - 
 
  Total $ 99,437 $ 166,153 
 
$99,437 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the 
year ended June 30, 2015. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 
 Years ended June 30, 
 
 2016 $44,694 
 2017 $42,589 
 2018 $34,176 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The total pension liability for the Plan was determined by applying 
update procedures to a financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013, and rolling forward the 
total pension liability to June 30, 2014. The financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013, 
used the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all prior periods included in the 
measurement:  
 
Valuation Date  June 30, 2013 
Experience Study July 1, 1996, through June 30, 2011 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal 
Investment Rate of Return 7.50% 
Consumer Price Inflation 2.75% 
Wage Growth Varies by entry age and service 
Post-retirement Benefit Increases Contract COLA up to 2.75% until Purchasing Power 
 Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies 
 2.75% thereafter 
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NOTE 6 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND (Continued) 
 
The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes 20 years of 
mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, please refer 
to the 2014 experience study report. 
 
All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates.  Further details of the Experience Study can be found at CalPERS’ 
website. 
 
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. 
 
  Long-Term* 
  Assumed Asset Expected Real 
 Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 
 
 Global Equity 47% 5.25% 
 Global Fixed Income 19 0.99 
 Inflation Sensitive 6 0.45 
 Private Equity  12 6.83 
 Real Estate  11 4.50 
 Infrastructure & Forestland  3 4.50 
 Liquidity  2 (0.55) 
 
 * 10-year geometric average 
 
Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent.  A 
projection of the expected benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets 
would run out. The test revealed the assets would not run out.  Therefore the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total pension liability for the Plan.  The results of the crossover testing for the Plan are presented in a 
detailed report that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website. 
 
According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined without 
reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return assumption used 
in the actuarial valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to 
be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 
percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher total pension liability and net 
pension liability. This difference was deemed immaterial to the Plan. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
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NOTE 6 – NET PENSION LIABILITY – PUBLIC EMPLOYER’S RETIREMENT FUND (Continued) 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected cash flows of the Plan. Such cash flows 
were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their required contributions on 
time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns of all the Plan’s asset classes, expected 
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-
60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and 
long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated. The expected rate of return was set by 
calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for 
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return 
was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest 
one quarter of one percent. 
 
Sensitivity of the JPA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: 
The following presents the JPA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.50 percent, as well as what the JPA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.50 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.50 percent) than the current rate: 
 
  1% Current 1% 
  Decrease Discount Increase 
  (6.50%) Rate (7.50%) (8.50%) 
 
 JPA’s proportionate share  
  of the net pension liability $877,949 $542,029 $263,247 
 
Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report. 
 
 
NOTE 7 – DESIGNATED NET POSITION 
 
 
The Board of Directors established the designation for contingency at the actuary's recommendation, to 
provide extra protection to the fund, and to further reduce the level of risk to members. There is no such 
designation for the years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014. 
 
 
NOTE 8 – CONTINGENCIES 
 
SELF is subject to legal proceedings and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business.  In the 
opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to these actions will not materially 
affect the financial position or results of operations of SELF. 
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  2015   2014  
 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at 
 beginning of year $ 15,690,378 $ 15,527,838 
 
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses: 
 Provision for covered events of current year  2,798,997  2,740,355 
 Change in provision for covered events of prior 
  years    9,205,727  (1,457,799) 
 
    Total incurred claims and claim 
     adjustment expenses  12,004,724  1,282,556 
 
Payments: 
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses 
  attributable to covered events of current 

year    -  - 
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses 
  attributable to covered events of prior 

years    4,152,029  1,120,016 
 
    Total payments  4,152,029  1,120,016 
 
    Total unpaid claims and claim 
     adjustment expenses, end of  
     year $ 23,543,073 $ 15,690,378 
 
The components of the unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 
were as follows: 
 
  2015   2014  
 
Reported claims  $ 15,979,992 $ 7,910,171 
Claims incurred but not reported  6,773,757  6,840,297 
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses  789,324  939,910 
 
      $ 23,543,073 $ 15,690,378 
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  2015   2014  
 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at 
 beginning of year $ 102,709,000 $ 113,980,000 
 
Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses: 
 Provision for covered events of current year  -  - 
 Change in provision for covered events of 
  prior years   1,554,747  (5,715,627) 
 
    Total incurred claims and claim 
     adjustment expenses  1,554,747  (5,715,627) 
 
Payments: 
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses 
  attributable to covered events of current 
  year    -  - 
 Claims and claim adjustment expenses 
  attributable to covered events of prior 
  years    6,310,724  5,555,373 
 
    Total payments  6,310,724  5,555,373 
 
    Total unpaid claims and claim  
     adjustment expenses, end of year $ 97,953,023 $ 102,709,000 
 
The components of the unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 
were as follows: 
 
  2015   2014 
 
Reported claims  $ 58,342,050 $ 71,102,541 
Claims incurred but not reported  31,442,190  26,290,544 
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses  8,168,783  5,315,915 
 
      $ 97,953,023 $ 102,709,000 
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The tables that follow illustrate how the Fund's earned revenues (net of reinsurance) and investment 
income compare to related costs of loss (net of loss assumed by reinsurers) and other expenses 
assumed by the Fund as of the end of each of the previous ten years for the Liability and Workers' 
Compensation Programs.  The rows of the tables are defined as follows: 
 

1. Total of each fiscal year's gross earned premiums, rate credits, amounts of premiums ceded, and 
reported premiums (net of reinsurance) and reported investment revenue allocated to each policy 
year. 

 
2. Each fiscal year's other operating costs of the Program including overhead and loss adjustment 

expenses not allocable to individual claims.  
 
3. Program's gross incurred losses and allocated loss adjustment expense, losses assumed by 

reinsurers, and net incurred losses and loss adjustment expense (both paid and accrued) as 
originally reported at the end of the year in which the event that triggered coverage occurred 
(called policy year). 

 
4. Cumulative net amounts paid as of the end of successive years for each policy year. 
 
5. Latest reestimated amount of losses assumed by reinsurers for each policy year. 
 
6. Policy year's net incurred claims as of the end of successive years.  This annual reestimation 

results from new information received on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on 
known claims, as well as emergence of new claims not previously known. 

 
7. Compares the latest reestimated net incurred claims amount to the amount originally established 

(line 5) and shows whether this latest estimate of claims cost is greater or less than originally 
thought.  As data for individual policy years mature, the correlation between original estimates 
and reestimated amounts is commonly used to evaluate the accuracy of incurred claims currently 
recognized in less mature policy years. 

 
8. Outstanding unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses as of June 30, 2015 for each policy 

year. 
 
The columns of the tables show data for successive policy years. 
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 Fiscal and Policy Year Ended June 30,  
 2006   2007   2008   2009   2010   2011   2012   2013   2014   2015 

(1) Premiums revenue: 
  Earned  $ 23,820 $ 17,198 $ 10,600 $ 9,998 $ 14,268 $ 11,376 $ 10,817 $ 9,829 $ 9,874 $ 10,294 
  Ceded (by policy year)   (2,465)  (2,999)  (3,017)  (7,955)  (10,345)  (7,997)  (8,296)  (6,610)  6,602  7,061 
  Cumulative interest earned  
   (by policy year)  6,718  3,330  1,878  155  293  90  57  57  31  566 
  Net earned contribution  
   and investment income $ 28,073 $ 17,529 $ 9,461 $ 2,198 $ 4,216 $ 3,469 $ 2,578 $ 3,276 $ 16,507 $ 17,921 
 
(2) Unallocated expenses $ 1,460 $ 1,508 $ 1,320 $ 1,396 $ 1,777 $ 1,406 $ 1,369 $ 1,265 $ 1,473 $ 1,504 
 
(3) Estimated incurred claims and  
 expenses, end of policy year: 
  Incurred  $ 14,916 $ 7,648 $ 3,454 $ - $ 4,755 $ 3,732 $ 3,652 $ 5,697 $ 2,740 $ 2,680 
  Ceded   -  -  -  -  -  -    -  -  - 
  Net incurred $ 14,916 $ 7,648 $ 3,454 $ - $ 4,755 $ 3,732 $ 3,652 $ 5,697 $ 2,740 $ 2,680 
 
(4) Paid (cumulative) as of: 
  End of policy year $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
  One year later $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -   
  Two years later $ 225 $ 4,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 4,005 $ - $ 2,761     
  Three years later $ 1,218 $ 4,130 $ 967 $ - $ - $ 4,011 $ -       
  Four years later $ 3,967 $ 20,114 $ 2,319 $ - $ - $ 4,011         
  Five years later $ 6,507 $ 20,930 $ 2,365 $ - $ -           
  Six years later $ 6,597 $ 20,947 $ 2,365 $ -             
  Seven years later $ 6,599 $ 20,947 $ 2,365               
  Eight years later $ 6,599 $ 21,335 
  Nine years later $ 6,599                  
 
(5) Re-estimated ceded losses  
 and expenses $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
 
(6) Re-estimated incurred claims  
 and expenses: 
  End of policy year $ 14,916 $ 7,648 $ 3,454 $ - $ 4,755 $ 3,732 $ 3,652 $ 5,697 $ 2,740 $ 2,680 
  One year later $ 9,813 $ 12,496 $ 7,727 $ - $ 3,048 $ 3,043 $ 2,210 $ 4,826 $ 3,645 
  Two years later $ 7,484 $ 7,566 $ 2,604 $ - $ 1,746 $ 5,142 $ 1,244 $ 3,706   
  Three years later $ 2,670 $ 6,778 $ 7,524 $ - $ 721 $ 4,778 $ 5,344     
  Four years later $ 5,731 $ 23,080 $ 4,354 $ - $ 522 $ 9,362       
  Five years later $ 7,301 $ 22,128 $ 2,528 $ - $ 239         
  Six years later $ 6,713 $ 21,074 $ 2,501 $ -           
  Seven years later $ 6,599 $ 20,983 $ 2,477             
  Eight years later $ 6,599 $ 21,400               
  Nine years later $ 6,626                  
 
(7) (Decrease) increase in esti- 
 mated incurred claims and  
 expenses from end of policy                      
 year    $ (8,290) $ 13,752 $ (1,068) $ - $ (4,516) $ 5,630 $ 1,692 $ (1,991) $ 905 $ - 
 
(8) Unpaid claims and claim 
 adjustment expenses $ 27 $ 65 $ 112 $ - $ 239 $ 5,351 $ 5,344 $ 945 $ 3,645 $ 2,680 
 
Note: Beginning July 1, 1999, SELF began discounting claim liabilities. 
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 Fiscal and Policy Year Ended June 30,  
 2006   2007   2008   2009   2010   2011   2012   2013   2014   2015 

 (1) Premium revenue: 
  Earned  $ 9,957 $ 11,237 $ 5,622 $ 4,155 $ 3,561 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
  Ceded    (5,848)  (7,643)  (2,141)  (1,955)  (1,685)  -  -  -  -  - 
  Cumulative interest earned 
   (by policy year)  1,433  923  748  300  103  -  -  -  -  - 
 
  Net earned $ 5,542 $ 4,517 $ 4,229 $ 2,500 $ 1,979 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
 
(2) Unallocated expenses $ 751 $ 1,084 $ 1,009 $ 824 $ 1,095 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
 
(3) Estimated incurred claims and 
 expense, end of policy year: 
  Incurred  $ 5,057 $ 2,974 $ 907 $ 2,067 $ 2,145 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
  Ceded   -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
  Net incurred $ 5,057 $ 2,974 $ 907 $ 2,067 $ 2,145 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
 
(4) Paid (cumulative) as of: 
  End of policy year $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
  One year later $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -   
  Two years later $ - $ 82 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $      
  Three years later $ - $ 102 $ - $ 188 $ 81 $ - $        
  Four years later $ - $ 112 $ - $ 491 $ 96 $          
  Five years later $ - $ 650 $ 61 $ 552 $ 201           
  Six years later $ - $ 787 $ 110 $ 816             
  Seven years later $ - $ 898 $ 363               
  Eight years later $ - $ 935                 
  Nine years later $ - 
 
(5) Re-estimated ceded losses 
 and expenses $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
 
(6) Re-estimated incurred claims 
 and expense: 
  End of policy year $ 5,057 $ 2,974 $ 907 $ 2,067 $ 2,145 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
  One year later $ 2,750 $ 3,018 $ 1,608 $ 2,667 $ 2,145 $ - $ - $ - $ -   
  Two years later $ 2,590 $ 3,727 $ 2,668 $ 3,287 $ 2,139 $ - $ - $ -     
  Three years later $ 2,856 $ 3,523 $ 3,740 $ 3,373 $ 2,252 $ - $ -       
  Four years later $ 2,273 $ 3,900 $ 3,162 $ 3,814 $ 2,323 $ -         
  Five years later $ 2,226 $ 3,736 $ 2,957 $ 4,446 $ 1,703           
  Six years later $ 1,568 $ 3,464 $ 2,736 $ 3,556             
  Seven years later $ 1,524 $ 3,653 $ 2,389               
  Eight years later $ 1,279 $ 3,019                 
  Nine years later $ 964                   
 
(7) Increase (decrease) in esti- 
 mated incurred claims and 
 expense from end of policy  
 year    $ (4,093) $ 45 $ 1,482 $ 1489 $ (442) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
 
(8) Unpaid claims and claim 
 adjustment expense with ULAE $ 964 $ 2,084 $ 2,026 $ 4,766 $ 1,502 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 
 
Note: Beginning July 1, 1999, SELF began discounting claim liabilities. 
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Public Employer's Retirement Fund 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 
  2015 
 
SELF's proportion of the net pension liability 0.02193% 
 
SELF's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 542,029 
 
SELF's covered-employee payroll $ 561,000 
 
SELF's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
 as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll 96.62% 
 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
 pension liability 78.59% 
 
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available. 
 
 



SCHOOLS EXCESS LIABILITY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF THE JPA CONTRIBUTIONS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
 

35. 

Public Employer's Retirement Fund 
Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 
   2015 
 
Contractually required contribution $ 80,717 
 
Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
 contribution  (80,717) 
 
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 
 
SELF's covered-employee payroll $ 561,000 
 
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 14.39% 
 
 
All years prior to 2015 are not available. 
 



SCHOOLS EXCESS LIABILITY FUND 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 
 
 
 

 
 
 

36. 

Changes of Benefit Terms: There are no changes in benefit terms reported in the Required 
Supplementary Information. 
 
Changes of Assumptions: There are no changes in assumptions reported in the Required Supplementary 
Information. 
 
  
 



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



SCHOOLS EXCESS LIABILITY FUND 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2015 
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37. 

     Excess 
     Workers' 
  Excess   Compen- 
  Liability   sation   Building   Total  
 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,853,536 $ 1,486,394 $ 66,604 $ 6,406,534 
 Receivables: 
  Interest and other receivables  137,288  223,792  215  361,295 
  Member receivables  91  -  -  91 
 Investments maturing within one  
  year  1,252,950  1,400,972  -  2,653,922 
 Current portion of assessments        
  receivable  -  6,355,281  -  6,355,281 
 Prepaid expenses  27,141  2,643  12,375  42,159 
 
   Total current assets  6,271,006  9,469,082  79,194  15,819,282 
 
Investments, less portion maturing         
 within one year  41,324,586  51,515,774  -  92,840,360 
Assessment receivable, less current 
 portion  -  44,477,964  -  44,477,964 
Capital assets: 
 Investment in building, net  -  -  1,551,368  1,551,368 
 Furniture and equipment, net  26,729  11,568  -  38,297 
 
  Total non-current assets  41,351,315  96,005,306  1,551,368  138,907,989 
 
  Total assets  47,622,321  105,474,388  1,630,562  154,727,271 
 
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 
 
Deferred outflows of resources –  
 Pensions  69,606  29,831  -  99,437 
 
LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 
 Accounts payable  124,203  305,768  2,830  432,801 
 Current portion of unpaid claims 
  and claim adjustment expenses  9,612,029  5,279,329  -  14,891,358 
 
   Total current liabilities  9,736,232  5,585,097  2,830  15,324,159 
 
Net pension liability  379,420  162,609  -  542,029 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment  
 expenses  13,931,044  92,673,694  -  106,604,738 
 
   Total liabilities  24,046,696  98,421,400  2,830  122,470,926 
 
DEFERRED INFLOWS 
 
Deferred inflows of resources –  
 Pensions  116,307  49,846  -  166,153 
 
NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets  26,729  11,568  1,551,368  1,589,665 
Unrestricted  23,502,195  7,021,405  76,364  30,599,964 
 
   Total net position $ 23,528,924 $ 7,032,973 $ 1,627,732 $ 32,189,629 



SCHOOLS EXCESS LIABILITY FUND 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2014 
 
 
 

 
 
 

38. 

     Excess 
     Workers' 
  Excess   Compen- 
  Liability   sation   Building   Total  
 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 
 Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,022,906 $ 5,259,884 $ 8,157 $ 8,290,947 
 Interest and other receivables  111,321  193,669  -  304,990 
 Investments maturing within one  
  year  500,987  301,275  -  802,262 
 Current portion of assessments         
  receivable  -  6,373,695  -  6,373,695 
 Prepaid expenses  24,408  1,926  11,670  38,004 
 Due from/to other programs  4,012,282  (3,845,326)  (166,956)  - 
 
 
   Total current assets  7,671,904  8,285,123  (147,129)  15,809,898 
 
Investments, less portion maturing         
 within one year  42,116,340  52,536,561  -  94,652,901 
Assessment receivable, less current 
 portion  -  50,843,120  -  50,843,120 
Capital assets: 
 Investment in building, net  -  -  1,397,546  1,397,546 
 Furniture and equipment, net  12,681  29,478  -  42,159 
 
  Total non-current assets  42,129,021  103,409,159  1,397,546  146,935,726 
 
  Total assets  49,800,925  111,694,282  1,250,417  162,745,624 
 
 
 
LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 
 Accounts payable  157,420  293,637  2,223  453,280 
 Current portion of unpaid claims 
  and claim adjustment expenses  3,900,000  6,000,000  -  9,900,000 
 
   Total current liabilities  4,057,420  6,293,637  2,223  10,353,280 
 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment  
 expenses  11,790,378  96,709,000  -  108,499,378 
 
   Total liabilities  15,847,798  103,002,637  2,223  118,852,658 
 
 
NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets  12,681  29,478  1,397,546  1,439,705 
Unrestricted  33,940,446  8,662,167  (149,352)  42,453,261 
 
   Total net position $ 33,953,127 $ 8,691,645 $ 1,248,194 $ 43,892,966 



SCHOOLS EXCESS LIABILITY FUND 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015 
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39. 

     Excess 
     Workers' 
  Excess   Compen- 
  Liability   sation   Building   Total  
 
Operating revenues: 
 Member contributions $ 10,293,954 $ - $ - $ 10,293,954 
 Member assessment  -  (9,875)  -  (9,875) 
 
    Total operating revenues  10,293,954  (9,875)  -  10,284,079 
 
Expenses: 
 Provision for unpaid claims and 
  claim adjustment expenses  12,004,724  1,554,747  -  13,559,471 
 Commercial reinsurance         
  premiums  7,060,714  -  -  7,060,714 
 
      19,065,438  1,554,747  -  20,620,185 
 
 General and administrative  
  expenses: 
   Contract services  338,880  273,006  -  611,886 
   Personnel costs  825,134  316,364  -  1,141,498 
   Administrative expenses  277,071  91,972  1,110  370,153 
   Travel expenses  54,258  27,558  -  81,816 

  Building expenses  -  -  122,985  122,985 
   Depreciation  8,718  4,694  101,702  115,114 
 
    Total general and administrative  1,504,061  713,594  225,797  2,443,452 
 
    Total operating expenses  20,569,499  2,268,341  225,797  23,063,637 
 
    Total operating (loss)   (10,275,545)  (2,278,216)  (225,797)  (12,779,558) 
 
Non-operating revenues: 
 Rental income  -  -  254,822  254,822 
 Investment income  566,069  859,242  -  1,425,311 
 Transfer – settle due to/from  (291,541)  (57,911)  349,452  - 
 Other income  2,730  749  1,061  4,540 
 
    Total non-operating revenues  277,258  802,080  605,335  1,684,673 
 
Change in net position  (9,998,287)  (1,476,136)  379,538  (11,094,885) 
 
Net position, June 30, 2014 originally  
 stated  33,953,127  8,691,645  1,248,194  43,892,966 
 
Cumulative effect of change in  
 accounting principle  (425,916)  (182,536)  -  (608,452) 
 
Net position, June 30, 2014, as restated  33,527,211  8,509,109  1,248,194  43,284,514 
 
Net position, June 30, 2015 $ 23,528,924 $ 7,032,973 $ 1,627,732 $ 32,189,629 



SCHOOLS EXCESS LIABILITY FUND 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

 
 
 

 
 
 

40. 

 Excess 
     Workers' 
  Excess   Compen- 
  Liability   sation   Building   Total  
 
Operating revenues: 
 Member contributions $ 9,873,823 $ - $ - $ 9,873,823 
 Member assessment  -  -  -  - 
 
    Total operating revenues  9,873,823  -  -  9,873,823 
 
Operating expenses: 
 Provision for unpaid claims and 
  claim adjustment expenses  1,282,556  (5,715,627)  -  (4,433,071) 
 Commercial reinsurance         
  premiums  6,605,173  -  -  6,605,173 
 
      7,887,729  (5,715,627)  -  2,172,102 
 
 General and administrative  
  expenses: 
   Contract services  379,247  131,465  -  510,712 
   Personnel costs  648,565  279,405  -  927,970 
   Administrative expenses  244,405  75,252  15,000  334,657 
   Travel expenses  80,285  31,952  -  112,237 
   Building expenses  -  -  134,418  134,418 
   Depreciation  35,634  15,300  73,669  124,603 
 
    Total general and administrative  1,388,136  533,374  223,087  2,144,597 
 
    Total operating expenses  9,275,865  (5,182,253)  223,087  4,316,699 
 
    Total operating income (loss)  597,958  5,182,253  (223,087)  5,557,124 
 
Non-operating revenues: 
 Rental income  -  -  239,538  239,538 
 Investment income  783,410  1,032,969  -  1,816,379 
 Other income  -  -  -  - 
 
    Total non-operating revenues  783,410  1,032,969  239,538  2,055,917 
 
Change in net position  1,381,368  6,215,222  16,451  7,613,041 
 
Net position, June 30, 2013   32,571,759  2,476,423  1,231,743  36,279,925 
 
Net position, June 30, 2014 $ 33,953,127 $ 8,691,645 $ 1,248,194 $ 43,892,966 



SCHOOLS EXCESS LIABILITY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS 

June 30, 2015 
(in thousands) 
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41. 

 Par   Fair 
 Value   Value  

Fannie Mae Notes (FNMA): 
   0.000% note, matures June 2017 $ 1,000,000 $ 984,625 
 0.000% note, matures June 2017  835,000  822,162 
 0.000% note, matures June 2017  2,000,000  1,969,250 
 0.000% note, matures June 2017  4,500,000  4,548,096 
 1.625% note, matures January 2020  1,000,000  998,614 
 1.625% note, matures January 2020  4,000,000  3,994,456 
 1.625% note, matures January 2020  3,000,000  2,995,842 
 1.750% note, benchmark notes, matures November 2019  4,000,000  4,021,004 
 1.750% note, benchmark notes, matures November 2019  3,000,000  3,015,753 
 
    23,335,000  23,349,802 
 
Fannie Mae Global Notes (FNMA): 
 1.250% note, matures January 2017  1,525,000  1,540,811 
 1.250% note, matures October 2017  2,000,000  2,000,916 
 0.875% note, matures May 2018  2,000,000  1,988,030 
 0.875% note, matures May 2018  3,000,000  2,982,045 
 0.875% note, matures November 2018  2,000,000  2,024,202 
 0.875% note, matures November 2018  2,000,000  2,024,202 
 0.875% note, matures November 2018  2,750,000  2,783,277 
 
    15,275,000  15,343,483 
 
Freddie Mac Global Notes (FHLMC):  
 1.000% note, matures September 2017  420,000  420,990 
 1.000% note, matures September 2017  2,435,000  2,440,737 
  
    2,855,000  2,861,727 
 
Corporate Notes: 
 American Express Co note, 1.125% matures June 2017  1,100,000  1,095,859 
 American Express Co note, 1.125% matures June 2017  1,470,000  1,464,465 
 Wells Fargo & Co. note, 1.150% matures June 2017  1,500,000  1,496,204 
 Wells Fargo & Co. note, 1.150% matures June 2017  1,750,000  1,745,571 
 American Honda Finance Global note, 2.25% matures August 2019 1,000,000  1,006,784 
 American Honda Finance Global note, 2.25% matures August 2019 1,250,000  1,258,480 
 HSBC USA Inc. 1.300% matures June 2017  500,000  499,761 
 HSBC USA Inc. 1.300% matures June 2017  600,000  599,713 
 JPMorgan Chase & Co. note, 1.350% matures February 2017  1,800,000  1,801,570 
 JPMorgan Chase & Co. note, 6.000% matures January 2018  2,100,000  2,313,141 
 



SCHOOLS EXCESS LIABILITY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS 

June 30, 2015 
(in thousands) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
42. 

Par Value   Fair Value 
     

Corporate Notes (Continued): 
 Toyota Motor Credit Co. note, 1.125% matures May 2017 $ 215,000 $ 215,476 
 HSBC USA Corp note, 1.700%, matures March 2018  1,000,000  997,249 
 Merck & Co Inc. Corp note, 5.000%, matures June 2019  1,750,000  1,948,637 
 General Elec Cap. note, 5.625% matures September 2017  1,700,000  1,851,184 
 General Elec Cap. note, 5.625% matures September 2017  2,000,000  2,177,864 
 Chevron Corp (callable) note, 1.104% matures December 2017  425,000  423,179 
 Chevron Corp (callable) note, 1.104% matures December 2017  500,000  497,858 
 Chevron Corp note, 1.365% matures March 2018  625,000  624,738 
 Chevron Corp note, 1.365% matures March 2018   625,000  624,738 
 Bank of New York Mellon Corp note, 1.60% matures May 2018  1,000,000  999,410 
 Bank of New York Mellon Corp note, 1.60% matures May 2018  1,500,000  1,499,115 
 Caterpillar Financial note, 1.25% matures August 2018  675,000  676,057 
 Apple Inc. note, 1.00% matures May 2018  785,000  777,064 
 Conoco Phillips Company Corp note, 1.50% May 2018  425,000  424,691  
 Ford ABS 2015-B A3, 1.160% matures November 2019  500,000  499,932 
 Honda ABS 2015-2 A3, 1.040% matures February 2019  710,000  709,702 
 Berkshire Hathaway note, 1.300% matures May 2018  600,000  600,066 
 
   28,105,000  28,828,508 
 
Certificate of Deposit:  
 Canadian Imperial Bank NY, 1.010% matures April 2017  1,500,000  1,497,525 
 Rabobank Nederland, 1.070% matures April 2017  1,500,000  1,495,590 
 Toronto Dominion Bank, 1.240% matures June 2017  1,250,000  1,249,994 
 HSBC Bank USA, 0.880%  1,500,000  1,500,938 
 Nordea Bank Finland, 0.410% matures June 2016  1,000,000  997,125 
 Goldman Sachs Bank USA 0.90% matures August 2016  1,750,000  1,753,264 
 Goldman Sachs Bank USA 0.90% matures August 2016  2,000,000  2,003,730 
 US Bank NA Cincinnati (callable), 1.375%, matures September 2017 1,500,000  1,499,163 
 Rabobank Nederland, 0.716% matures May 2016  1,750,000  1,749,023 
 
   13,750,000  13,746,352 
 
Other: 
 US Treasury Note, 1.625% matures March 2019  2,000,000  2,023,906 
 University of CA Rev, 1.554% matures May 2017  515,000  519,362 
 University of CA Rev, 1.904% matures May 2018  260,000  264,046 
 University of CA Rev, 1.554% matures May 2017  515,000  519,362 
 Tenn Valley Authority, 1.750% matures October 2018  2,000,000  2,017,446 
 Tenn Valley Authority, 1.750% matures October 2018  3,000,000  3,026,169 
 Orange County CA Rev, 0.780% matures May 2016  1,250,000  1,252,950 
 Metro Wtr Dist Auth CA Rev Bonds, 0.943% matures July 2015  500,000  500,000 
 CA ST Dept of Water Rev Bonds, .650% matures December 2015  900,000  900,972 
 CA ST Dept of Water Rev Bonds, .991% matures December 2016  340,000  340,197 
  
    11,280,000  11,364,410 
 
   $ 94,600,000 $ 95,494,282 
 



 
Crowe Horwath LLP 
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International 
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43. 

 
 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
 
To the Board of Directors and Members 
Schools Excess Liability Fund 
Sacramento, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Schools Excess Liability Fund which 
comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2015, and the related statement of revenues, 
expenses and change in net position, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 1, 2015. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Schools Excess Liability 
Fund’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Schools Excess Liability Fund’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Schools Excess 
Liability Fund’s internal controls. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 



 

 
 
 

44. 

Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Schools Excess Liability Fund’s financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance.   This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control 
and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 
 Crowe Horwath LLP 
 
Sacramento, California 
October 1, 2015 
 
 


